
Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, August 4, 2020 
1 

Reviewed 08/06/2020 by Jarrod Holter 
 

The Meeting of the Board of Public Works of the City of Onalaska was called to order at 6:30 1 
p.m. on Tuesday, August 4, 2020.  It was noted that the meeting had been announced and a 2 
notice posted at City Hall. 3 
 4 
Roll call was taken with the following members present:  Mayor Kim Smith, Ald. Diane Wulf, 5 
Ald. Steven Nott, City Engineer Jarrod Holter, Financial Services Director/Treasurer Fred 6 
Buehler 7 
 8 
Also Present:  City Administrator Eric Rindfleisch, City Attorney Amanda Jackson, Assistant 9 
City Engineer Kevin Schubert 10 
 11 
Item 2 – Approval of minutes from previous meeting 12 
 13 
Motion by Fred, second by Mayor K. Smith, to approve the minutes from the previous meeting 14 
as printed and on file in the City Clerk’s Office. 15 
 16 
On voice vote, motion carried. 17 
 18 
Item 3 – Public Input (limited to 3 minutes/individual) 19 
 20 
Ald. Wulf called three times for anyone wishing to provide public input and closed that portion 21 
of the meeting. 22 
 23 

Consideration and possible action on the following items: 24 
 25 

Item 4 – Review and consideration of sidewalk café permit 26 
 27 
Jarrod told board members Amanda had drafted the permit and the proposed ordinance for a 28 
Sidewalk Café Permit, noting there have been situations in downtown Onalaska in which 29 
individuals have utilized the public right-of-way (sidewalk area) for tables.  Jarrod said city staff 30 
wants to establish rules, and he told board members sidewalk cafes likely would only be seen in 31 
the downtown district as it is the only area of the city in which the sidewalks are wide enough to 32 
accommodate cafes.  The ordinance will be going before the Administrative and Judiciary 33 
Committee.  Jarrod told board members he sees no issues with the permit as it is written and said 34 
he believes it can work.  Jarrod said the city has the ability to limit activities if staff sees any 35 
issues. 36 
 37 
Amanda said a request had been made to the city to establish a sidewalk café permit, and she told 38 
board members there had been a vague part of the ordinance that stated perhaps sidewalk cafes 39 
were permissible as part of a special event.  Amanda said the city’s Special Event Permit is not 40 
made for that, and she told board members something had been crafted for the restaurants that 41 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, August 4, 2020 
2 

Reviewed 08/06/2020 by Jarrod Holter 
 

wanted to allow for such accommodations after they had reopened.  Amanda said staff had 42 
examined how other municipalities in the state were addressing this issue, and she noted a 43 
majority of them are utilizing a sidewalk café permit.  Amanda said the most significant 44 
component is that the city does not want the sidewalk obstructed for those confined to a 45 
wheelchair, noting that is why the 4-foot requirement has been included.  Amanda said, “We 46 
came up with this based on what other cities were doing that we liked.  This would satisfy the 47 
needs of David Reay’s and Maggie’s, [who] were looking to use their sidewalk to their full 48 
advantage.” 49 
 50 
Mayor K. Smith thanked city staff members for their efforts in creating the permit and ordinance 51 
and said she believes it addresses a need that was previously absent in the community.  Mayor K. 52 
Smith noted restauranteurs are attempting to maximize the space that is available in the wake of 53 
the COVID-19 pandemic, and she said she believes this is a great way to do it. 54 
 55 
Motion by Mayor K. Smith, second by Ald. Nott, to approve Sidewalk Café Permit application. 56 
 57 
Ald. Nott stated he agrees that this is a great idea given the current state of affairs because the 58 
establishments that are making this request may remain operational.  Ald. Nott referred to 59 
Section B (“Outdoor Dining Areas on Public Property”), Subsection 4 (“Permit Standards”), 60 
letter ‘g’, which states, “Molded plastic tables and chairs will not be permitted,” and asked why 61 
this restriction is in place. 62 
 63 
Jarrod told Ald. Nott he believes part of the reason is because of the fragile nature of molded 64 
plastic tables and chairs, noting it is possible the wind could blow them into the street.  Jarrod 65 
said staff wanted to see a more permanent structure that would not be moved by the wind, or 66 
easily moved by patrons. 67 
 68 
Amanda told Ald. Nott it is a matter of safety. 69 
 70 
Ald. Nott asked if perhaps letter ‘g’ could be reworded to state that chairs and tables must not be 71 
able to be moved airborne by wind speeds in excess of a certain speed.  Ald. Nott said it is 72 
possible furniture constructed of a material such as wicker also can be displaced by the wind. 73 
 74 
Jarrod said staff could look at recrafting the sentence prior to the August 11 Common Council 75 
meeting. 76 
 77 
Ald. Nott suggested to Jarrod that staff looks what the city is attempting to prevent and edit the 78 
sentence. 79 
 80 
Amanda said staff can craft more general language to state that chairs constructed out of a 81 
material that is more subject to being displaced by the wind are not permitted. 82 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, August 4, 2020 
3 

Reviewed 08/06/2020 by Jarrod Holter 
 

 83 
Jarrod suggested the following wording: “Tables and chairs must be of substantial nature to 84 
prevent movement by forces of wind.” 85 
 86 
On voice vote, motion carried. 87 
 88 
Ald. Wulf asked if the board needs to address the ordinance this evening, or if it will be going 89 
directly to the Administrative and Judiciary Committee on Wednesday. 90 
 91 
Amanda told Ald. Wulf the ordinance will go before the Administrative and Judiciary 92 
Committee at its Wednesday night meeting, and she said she will attempt to rewrite the sentence 93 
in time for that meeting.  Amanda said she believes it is logical to make the amendment to 94 
Section B(4)(g) at Wednesday’s Administrative and Judiciary Committee meeting and then 95 
move the ordinance to the Council meeting so that the ordinance may be approved while there 96 
still are favorable weather conditions and establishments may utilize the permit. 97 
 98 
Item 5 – Review and consideration of Change Order #3 for 6th and Quincy Lift Station 99 
Project 100 
 101 
Jarrod noted Change Order No. 3 will result in a savings of $15,753 and said the following are a 102 
variety of allowances that were not needed: 103 
 104 

a. Concrete surface repair allowance deduction of $8,450. 105 
b. Electrical utility service allowance deduction of $2,553. 106 
c. Unsuitable foundation material allowance deduction of $1,750. 107 
d. Gas service allowance deduction of $3,000. 108 

 109 
Motion by Jarrod, second by Ald. Nott, to approve Change Order #3 for 6th and Quincy Lift 110 
Station Project for a project savings in the amount of $15,753. 111 
 112 
On voice vote, motion carried. 113 
 114 
Item 6 – Review and consideration of one-year extension to water and sewer hookup for 115 
2660 Abbey Road 116 
 117 
Jarrod told board members this property was annexed into the City of Onalaska at the time 118 
Abbey Road was installed in 2019.  Jarrod said the owner had brought in two different properties 119 
and hooked up water and sewer services to one of the properties.  Jarrod said the property owner 120 
had planned to hook up water and sewer services to the property located at 2660 Abbey Road.  121 
However, the tenant moved out and the residence is currently vacant.  The property owner is 122 
seeking a one-year extension as the structure is vacant and will not be utilizing water and sewer 123 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, August 4, 2020 
4 

Reviewed 08/06/2020 by Jarrod Holter 
 

services. 124 
 125 
Jarrod said, “Typically, we see these more so on larger annexation areas such as when Oak Park 126 
came in.  Maybe you’d have a number of homes, and the reason for the one-year [extension 127 
request] is to make sure people don’t wait 10, 20 years until their septic system fails to hook up 128 
to city utilities.  I don’t have a problem giving him another year extension.  I think if the building 129 
is vacant it’s not causing any environmental harm and he’s not trying to get out of it.  He has 130 
paid the assessments.  I think he will do it eventually; it’s just that he’s asking for one more 131 
year.” 132 
 133 
Motion by Ald. Nott, second by Mayor K. Smith, to approve a one-year extension to water and 134 
sewer hookup for 2660 Abbey Road. 135 
 136 
On voice vote, motion carried. 137 
 138 
Item 7 – Review and consideration of 2020 Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition 139 
upgrades 140 
 141 
Jarrod noted there is a quote from Altronex, which is part of LW Allen, included in board 142 
members’ packets, as well as the project’s specifications, which Strand Associates had created.  143 
This project was included in the 2020 Capital Improvements Budget, and $120,000 was 144 
budgeted.  Jarrod said several updates would be part of the SCADA project, and some of them 145 
are needed immediately: 146 
 147 

• The Aspen Valley booster station is an example of a facility that needs to be updated as 148 
there are required upgrades for the Green Coulee Reservoir Project.  The booster station 149 
fills that reservoir. 150 

• SCADA controls will be added to the sanitary sewer meter pit.  This is the direct 151 
measuring point for the City of Onalaska’s sewer going to the City of La Crosse.  There 152 
will be instantaneous readouts back to the Public Works Facility.  Staff currently must 153 
obtain a circular graph on a weekly basis at the building on site that shows what the flow 154 
was. 155 

• Replace the primary PLC computer at the Public Works Facility that controls the entire 156 
SCADA system.  The current model is running out of memory. 157 

 158 
Jarrod said these projects would be budgeted through the budget process if they already were not 159 
budgeted, and he told board members he will be bringing forward at the September 1 Board of 160 
Public Works meeting a quote from Strand Associates that will address the SCADA graphics for 161 
the computer located at the Public Works Facility.  Jarrod said staff recommends approval of the 162 
Altronex bid at a cost of $116,741, and he noted Altronex is the city’s sole provider of the 163 
SCADA system.  Altronex installed the SCADA system, and Jarrod told board members 164 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, August 4, 2020 
5 

Reviewed 08/06/2020 by Jarrod Holter 
 

Altronex must perform the upgrades and maintenance of the system. 165 
 166 
Ald. Wulf asked Jarrod if the city has utilized the SCADA system since approximately 2005. 167 
 168 
Jarrod told Ald. Wulf the upgraded SCADA system was installed in approximately 2005, noting 169 
the system the city previously had utilized telephone lines.  Jarrod said the city had budgeted for 170 
upgrades in previous years, and he told Ald. Wulf the cost of original investment in the entire 171 
system was nearly $600,000. 172 
 173 
Motion by Mayor K. Smith, second by Ald. Nott, to approve 2020 Supervisory Control and Data 174 
Acquisition upgrades to Altronex at a cost of $116,741, with the 2020 Capital Improvements 175 
Budget serving as the funding source. 176 
 177 
Mayor K. Smith inquired about the budgeted amount for this project. 178 
 179 
Jarrod said $120,000. 180 
 181 
On voice vote, motion carried. 182 
 183 
Item 8 – Review and consideration of Onalaska Code recodification 184 
 185 
Amanda said this is the proposal to perform the Onalaska Code recodification, which will occur 186 
after all the city’s ordinances have been rewritten.  Amanda said this is migrating it to an online 187 
platform and updating it, she shared her screen to show board members the City of Fond du 188 
Lac’s Code of Ordinances and said the City of Onalaska’s Code of Ordinances could look the 189 
same way.  Amanda noted eCode360 is the format the City of Fond du Lac had utilized for its 190 
Code of Ordinances, and she told board members that is the proposal General Code has 191 
submitted to the City of Onalaska.  The eCode360 format includes a table of contents, and boxes 192 
that can be checked to expand ordinances.  Users also may print individual sections, email them 193 
to someone, download them, and share them on Facebook and Twitter.  Amanda told board 194 
members the format is user-friendly, especially for city staff members, who often must answer 195 
questions about ordinances. 196 
 197 
Amanda said staff is considering the Premium Upgrade at a cost of an additional $200, which 198 
would give staff the ability to add items to the side.  Fond du Lac has utilized the left side of its 199 
site to list recently passed laws.  Amanda said that because there is a cost to maintaining and 200 
upgrading this, the city will not have the ability to instantly integrate new ordinances into its 201 
code the way it currently does.  Therefore, the city will perform one code upgrade per year.  202 
Amanda told board members the city will have the ability to put whatever it chooses on the left 203 
side.  For example, citizens could click on “Resolutions” and view every resolution the city 204 
passed in 2020.  Amanda said Common Council meeting agendas also could be moved to this 205 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, August 4, 2020 
6 

Reviewed 08/06/2020 by Jarrod Holter 
 

location, and she told board members, “It gives us the ability to put everything together in a 206 
really nice, user-friendly package – both for staff, and also for our residents.”  Amanda pointed 207 
out the City of Fond du Lac’s logo and said that while she is not on that city’s website and has 208 
moved to eCode360’s platform, the logo has been branded and it appears she still is on the city’s 209 
website.  Amanda noted approximately $25,000 was budgeted for this item in the CIB and said 210 
staff is seeking the board’s approval this evening.  Amanda said that due to the city’s efforts in 211 
reducing the amount of code it had, General Code had submitted an updated quote and the initial 212 
cost would be $10,325.  There also would be a yearly maintenance cost of approximately $2,000. 213 
 214 
Jarrod noted $22,000 had been budgeted for this item in the 2020 CIB. 215 
 216 
Ald. Wulf said she and Amanda are seeking a motion to approve General Code’s bid of $10,325, 217 
and also Premium eCode360 at a cost of $1,195. 218 
 219 
Motion by Ald. Nott, second by Mayor K. Smith, to approve Onalaska Code recodification to 220 
General Code in the amount of $10,325, and also the Premium eCode360 maintenance at a cost 221 
of $1,195. 222 
 223 
Mayor K. Smith inquired about the duration of the maintenance fee. 224 
 225 
Jarrod said the city will have to pay a yearly maintenance fee and budget for it after the initial 226 
purchase. 227 
 228 
Amanda told Jarrod he is correct. 229 
 230 
Seeking clarification, Mayor K. Smith asked, “It’s $10,325 to take our code when you get done 231 
revamping it and turn it into this electronic version.  And what was the annual cost?” 232 
 233 
Jarrod said the annual cost is $1,195. 234 
 235 
Mayor K. Smith noted the city presumably would pay approximately $100 per month, and she 236 
asked, “What would some activities be …?  To rate $100 a month … You said they weren’t 237 
going to be updating the code as we pass new ordinances.  What actually would they be doing 238 
for $100 a month?  I’m not against it.  I just am wondering what it is.” 239 
 240 
Amanda said she believes part of it is hosting the code, noting it no longer would be on the City 241 
of Onalaska’s website.  Amanda also noted there is a backend platform to which she and City 242 
Clerk JoAnn Marcon will have access and the ability to load the new laws and resolutions.  243 
Amanda said she believes the primary cost is an annual hosting fee. 244 
 245 
Ald. Wulf stated she supports utilizing General Code, and she noted there will be an additional 246 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, August 4, 2020 
7 

Reviewed 08/06/2020 by Jarrod Holter 
 

cost of $18 per page when the city makes changes.  Ald. Wulf said she believes it will be more 247 
cost-effective for the city to do updates once a year, and she noted that the city receives an 248 
additional five items – one of which is the New Laws Indicator – by purchasing Premium 249 
eCode360 instead of Standard eCode360, which has an annual fee of $995. 250 
 251 
Ald. Nott noted the motion on the floor locks the city into the $1,195 annual maintenance fee for 252 
Premium eCode360, and he said this likely would require another motion to pass any type of 253 
change.  Ald. Nott said he assumes that cost likely would increase over time, and he asked if the 254 
motion should be amended to state the city will pay the maintenance fee. 255 
 256 
Ald. Wulf said she assumes that would change with every budget, noting it would be a budgeted 257 
item under the City Administrator’s budget with a line item that the Common Council would 258 
approve. 259 
 260 
Mayor K. Smith said she felt like the motion was stating the city would pay it for this year. 261 
 262 
On voice vote, motion carried. 263 
 264 
Item 9 – Review and consideration of 6th and Quincy Lift Station project bypass pumping 265 
equipment purchase 266 
 267 
Jarrod said staff is requesting the purchase of a variety of equipment that has been included in 268 
board members’ packets.  This would allow city staff to pump out of the two manholes with an 269 
emergency bypass pump.  Jarrod noted there are two different sized pipes coming in to two 270 
different locations, and he said city staff could plug the manholes, give employees extra piping to 271 
reach the bypass pump, and merge the two hoses together.  Jarrod told board members he 272 
believes this would allow for easier operation if there is an emergency as it would allow staff not 273 
to pump out of the lift station wet well.  Jarrod said that while he hopes this is something staff 274 
will never have to utilize, he recalled an instance when disposable wipes had clogged both 275 
pumps at the lift station, which made pumping at the station a necessity.  Jarrod said, “We tried 276 
to mitigate a lot of that with the new lift station by installing three pumps.  But I think this 277 
equipment would have us in a better position if we ever did have to bypass a pump at the lift 278 
station.”  Jarrod noted MC Tools and Repair, LLC had submitted the lowest bid at $5,779.06, 279 
and the purchase would be funded via CIB funding for the station. 280 
 281 
Ald. Wulf asked Jarrod if the city has utilized MC Tools and Repair’s services in the past. 282 
 283 
Jarrod said the individual who started MC Tools and Repair had worked on the city’s equipment 284 
for approximately 15 years. 285 
 286 
Motion by Mayor K. Smith, second by Ald. Nott, to approve MC Tools and Repair, LLC for 6th 287 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, August 4, 2020 
8 

Reviewed 08/06/2020 by Jarrod Holter 
 

and Quincy Lift Station project bypass pumping equipment purchase at a cost not to exceed 288 
$5,779.06. 289 
 290 
On voice vote, motion carried. 291 
 292 
Item 10 – 2020 Miscellaneous Concrete ADA Project – Info Only 293 
  294 
Kevin said city staff wishes to bid out an additional project as part of the regular Miscellaneous 295 
Concrete Project, noting staff utilizes a variety of sources (some budgeted, some stormwater 296 
fees).  Kevin noted there was a Capital Improvements line item with the Parks Department in this 297 
year’s projects to perform ADA-related sidewalk repairs throughout some of the city’s parks.  298 
Kevin told board members the hope was to utilize some of that funding to go through the original 299 
Miscellaneous Concrete Project, and he said, “Because of various construction items throughout 300 
the year, the actual total budget for that Miscellaneous Concrete Project is running up against the 301 
original bid amount.  We have more work to do through that than is allowable to be increased 302 
into the project.” 303 
 304 
Kevin said he believes the city may only exceed the bid amount for an additional 15 percent over 305 
the bid, and he told board members city staff only would have approximately an additional 306 
$12,000 to exceed.  Kevin said he will be putting out an additional bid this month, and he told 307 
board members he will be seeking approval at the September 1 Board of Public Works and 308 
September 8 Common Council meetings.  Kevin said staff believes there is time in both 309 
September and October to complete the work, and he told board members there is no cost to the 310 
city if there are unfavorable bids as the project would not be approved.  Kevin noted the city had 311 
received a favorable bid for the Green Coulee Reservoir Project, and he said city staff is hoping 312 
for a favorable bid for this project, which would assist the Parks Department in completing its 313 
work as part of the budgeted 2020 Capital Improvements Projects. 314 
 315 
Item 11 – Discussion regarding parking restrictions related to mail delivery 316 
 317 
Mayor K. Smith told board members the Administrative and Judiciary Committee has been 318 
discussing this topic for several months because constituents have raised concerns regarding 319 
motorists parking in front of their mailboxes.  As a result, postal workers have refused to deliver 320 
their mail.  Mayor K. Smith said city staff was not certain what the rules were from the United 321 
States Postal Service’s perspective, and she told board members. “What we can do about it, I’m 322 
still not entirely certain.  But in the case where it is a mounted delivery – which means the 323 
delivery person is driving around in their car and putting the mail in the mailboxes – they do 324 
require that the road parking area be clean for a total of 30 feet, which would be 15 feet each way 325 
from the mailbox.  It’s actually a safety rule that the mail deliverer not disembark from their 326 
vehicle.  They can be terminated for doing that.  It’s considered a safety violation.  If they were 327 
parked in the lane of traffic to do this, obviously it’s not safe to do this and we don’t want them 328 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, August 4, 2020 
9 

Reviewed 08/06/2020 by Jarrod Holter 
 

doing that either.” 329 
 330 
Mayor K. Smith said the Postmaster had told her if there are locations where this is a common 331 
problem, other municipalities have marked it ‘no parking’ on those sections.  Mayor K. Smith 332 
suggested perhaps designating areas where there is a chronic problem no parking from 7 a.m. to 333 
4 p.m.  Mayor K. Smith told board members this is something they will need to consider if they 334 
want to proceed in areas where problems have consistently occurred. 335 
 336 
Jarrod said he is contacted by telephone a few times a year regarding this issue, and he stated he 337 
would not like having an ordinance for which the city begins putting up signage for particular 338 
mailboxes because he believes it would be costly for the city to both install and maintain that 339 
signage.  Jarrod said there have been requests to paint the areas where mailboxes are located 340 
yellow, but staff has refrained from doing so.  Jarrod said that while he believes it would be a 341 
burden on the city to install signage if a citizen calls to request it, he also sees how it would be a 342 
hardship regarding citizens’ mail delivery.  Jarrod said he can envision citizens installing a 343 
mailbox 25 feet from their driveway, “so if you go 15 feet each side of it there’s only 10 feet left.  344 
It’s not a legal parking spot between their driveway and the 15-foot offset.  Now they can almost 345 
block off their whole frontage depending on how wide their driveway is so nobody parks in front 346 
of their house.  That’s the other problem I can see with people doing this.” 347 
 348 
Ald. Nott told board members one of Ald. Wulf’s Second District constituents sometimes goes 349 
days without receiving his mail because of this issue, and he suggested including language in an 350 
ordinance stating that motorists may not park within 15 feet of a mailbox from 7 a.m. to 4 p.m. 351 
Monday through Saturday. 352 
 353 
Ald. Wulf noted the constituent to which Ald. Nott had referred was experiencing difficulties 354 
receiving his mail due to parents parking by his mailbox as they waited to pick up their children 355 
from Irving Pertzsch Elementary School.  Ald. Wulf said it is possible other citizens might be 356 
experiencing difficulties with receiving their mail on Saturdays and stated perhaps it would be 357 
best not to allow parking within 15 feet of a mailbox from 7 a.m. to 4 p.m. Monday through 358 
Saturday.  Ald. Wulf said the constituent to which Ald. Nott had referred has been reasonable 359 
and simply wishes to receive his mail, and she stated, “I think something needs to be done, but I 360 
have to side with Jarrod on this.  I’ve agreed with Jarrod all this time about not signing 361 
everything and not striping everything because it ends up putting a tremendous burden on city 362 
staff to maintain it.  Once you do it, you have to maintain it.  Everyone should know you can’t 363 
park 10 feet either way of a fire hydrant.” 364 
 365 
Ald. Nott told board members two constituents have contacted him over the past year regarding 366 
mail delivery, and he noted they are not affected by any of the schools in the city.  Ald. Nott 367 
reiterated he believes there should be restrictions in place from 7 a.m. to 4 p.m. Monday through 368 
Saturday.  Ald. Nott also said regarding any burden on the Police Department, police officers 369 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, August 4, 2020 
10 

Reviewed 08/06/2020 by Jarrod Holter 
 

could rely on citizens to tell them they are experiencing problems and they could do targeted 370 
enforcement. 371 
 372 
Amanda referred to Ald. Nott’s point that not every motorist is parking on the street due to 373 
picking up their children from school, and she expressed concern that the city would 374 
unintentionally be placing a broad, sweeping parking regulation across the city.  Amanda 375 
cautioned that the unintended consequence would be limiting families that regularly park on the 376 
street because perhaps adult children live with them, there are other individuals living with them, 377 
or they have a very small parking area such as a one-car garage or a limited driveway.  Amanda 378 
said, “I would be concerned that by doing this we are greatly restricting on-street parking on side 379 
streets.” 380 
 381 
Ald. Wulf asked what a ‘no parking’ sign means in the State of Wisconsin, noting there are 382 
instances when a motorist may park a vehicle and load and unload items, but he/she may not 383 
leave the automobile alone.  Ald. Wulf said, “There has to be teeth to it, because if we just say 384 
‘no parking,’ what is that really going to mean in our ordinances if we were to adopt something 385 
like that?  Typically, at least for my constituent, people are parking there while they’re waiting to 386 
pick up their kids and they’re not leaving the vehicle.”  Ald. Wulf noted these individuals would 387 
be parked legally in some states even though there was a no parking sign present and they were 388 
blocking a mailbox, and she said, “Depending on what the legal verbiage is, if we were to go that 389 
route we just have to make sure that we are attacking the problem legally.” 390 
 391 
Ald. Nott said he believes Amanda’s concerns are legitimate and suggested including verbiage 392 
stating residents are exempt. 393 
 394 
Jarrod told Ald. Wulf, “Depending on how you would want to word it, if you want to solve that 395 
problem you’d have to put no parking, stopping or standing.  That’s what we do at spots we 396 
don’t want people either stopping waiting for somebody to load, because with parking you have 397 
to leave your car.  If you stay in your car, technically you’re not parking [because] you’re still 398 
attending your car.” 399 
 400 
Ald. Nott reiterated the city could exempt property owners so that Amanda’s concerns are 401 
addressed. 402 
 403 
Mayor K. Smith asked Ald. Nott how one would know whether or not a resident was parking in 404 
front of a mailbox. 405 
 406 
Ald. Nott said citizens who receive a citation could bring it to City Hall and show they reside at a 407 
property so they are exempted from the fine. 408 
 409 
Mayor K. Smith told Jarrod she had learned that in the City of La Crosse a curb that is painted 410 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, August 4, 2020 
11 

Reviewed 08/06/2020 by Jarrod Holter 
 

yellow does not necessarily mean parking is or is not allowed and individuals must go by the 411 
signs. 412 
 413 
Jarrod said he believes the city’s ordinances state parking is not allowed on a curb painted 414 
yellow.  Jarrod said the goal is to have signage because a curb painted yellow could be obscured 415 
five months of the year due to snow. 416 
 417 
Ald. Wulf noted she had spoken with Amanda about this topic earlier this summer and said if 418 
there were to be some type of a citywide ordinance, the city would be required by law to post 419 
signs on the entrance and the exits to the city, and perhaps locations within the city, to be legal. 420 
 421 
Amanda said that in order to give appropriate notice, it is necessary to have it on every street 422 
where the restriction is in place, or it must be on all connecting highways.  Amanda noted she 423 
and Jarrod had discussed a 24-hour parking restriction as it relates to this, and she told Ald. Wulf 424 
that per state statute the public must be notified. 425 
 426 
Mayor K. Smith said it would be like alternate-side parking and the dates it is in effect, and she 427 
asked if perhaps it could be placed on the same signpost. 428 
 429 
Jarrod said a placard stating that parking on city streets for more than 24 hours will be added 430 
below it.  Jarrod also suggested seeking feedback from Police Chief Charles Ashbeck so that he 431 
has an opportunity to voice concerns regarding writing citations and enforcement. 432 
 433 
Mayor K. Smith stated she believes further discussion must occur and said she does not like the 434 
idea of this being a citywide policy as it would be making a rule that affects everyone when only 435 
a few citizens are affected.  Mayor K. Smith said perhaps it is possible to reach a better solution 436 
that does not encompass the entire city. 437 
 438 
Ald. Wulf noted the Administrative and Judiciary Committee will be discussing this item 439 
Wednesday evening. 440 
 441 
Jarrod said he believes there likely will be signage at 500 locations in the city if there is signage 442 
at every location, adding, “You’ll have two signs and posts for every location.  If you have 500 443 
locations, that’s 1,000 signs.  We just completed a sign inventory of the whole city, and we 444 
currently have 3,300 signs in the whole city.  There are spots where we have three or four signs 445 
on one post. … If you wanted to mark every one, unless you painted them yellow, it would be a 446 
lot to put signage up at each location.” 447 
 448 
Mayor K. Smith asked Jarrod, “Do you think the residents in general would like this?” 449 
 450 
Jarrod said, “I think once they figure out that it’s happening, if they get anybody to park there 451 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, August 4, 2020 
12 

Reviewed 08/06/2020 by Jarrod Holter 
 

they’re going to ask for it unless you charge a fee.” 452 
 453 
Mayor K. Smith said it seems as though there is negative feedback whenever the city designates 454 
a certain location no parking, citing the area by Nutbush City Limits and 12th Avenue South past 455 
Main Street as examples. 456 
 457 
Jarrod said an unintended consequence is there will be three or four residences that will take 458 
steps to prohibit parking, and he noted citizens will become upset because their neighbors will 459 
consistently park in front of their houses. 460 
 461 
Ald. Wulf noted another alderperson had asked if the city has the ability to suggest to the post 462 
office that no mailboxes will be allowed along the right-of-way on 8th Avenue, thereby forcing 463 
postmen and women to deliver mail to citizens’ doors. 464 
 465 
Jarrod said he believes the correct action to take would be to place the mailbox within 3 feet of 466 
the driveway.  That way, only 15 feet on one side is being marked.  Jarrod said he has told 467 
residents to place the mailbox next to their driveway, and he noted that per city ordinance 468 
parking within 5 feet of the driveway is not allowed. 469 
 470 
Mayor K. Smith asked if moving the mailbox closer to the driveway is an alternative for 471 
residents. 472 
 473 
Jarrod said the citizen who has been contacting Ald. Wulf has his mailbox in a unique location. 474 
 475 
Ald. Wulf noted her constituent has utilities in the way. 476 
 477 
Ald. Nott noted one of his constituents resides in a townhome in an area with very small 478 
properties.  There are mailboxes for each resident, and they are within close proximity to each 479 
other.  Ald. Nott said within 3 feet of each driveway will not matter. 480 
 481 
City Administrator Rindfleisch noted there are several zero-lot line duplexes in the neighborhood 482 
in which he resides, and there are various designs of the two-car driveways that access those.  483 
City Administrator Rindfleisch said he believes the challenge is if there is 3 feet from the 484 
driveway, plus 15 feet for parking, it becomes necessary to go the other direction.  City 485 
Administrator Rindfleisch said, “You’re at 36 feet between the mailbox of no parking area there.  486 
Along my walk, there are several homes where there are cars probably appropriately parked 487 
there for the residents who are living there that we would be taking up those parking spots during 488 
those timeframes for mail delivery during the day.  We’re looking at the full 36 feet one way or 489 
the other, depending on where the mailboxes are.  You’re talking about unintended 490 
consequences.  I definitely think there will be unintended consequences with this one.  I would 491 
also suggest reaching out to the Police Chief regarding writing citations for this.  I think except 492 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, August 4, 2020 
13 

Reviewed 08/06/2020 by Jarrod Holter 
 

for residents’ proof of residence is a slippery slope.  Is a guest of a resident included in that?  Is a 493 
spouse or girlfriend or boyfriend who is not on the lease – how do you prove residency?  I would 494 
be concerned about that as well.” 495 
 496 
Ald. Wulf suggested keeping this item on the Board of Public Works’ September 1 meeting 497 
agenda as well as the Administrative and Judiciary Committee’s meeting agenda.  Ald. Wulf also 498 
echoed City Administrator Rindfleisch’s and Jarrod’s suggestion to involve Police Chief 499 
Ashbeck in future discussions. 500 
 501 
Item 12 – Pay Estimates:  Strand Associates, Short Elliott Hendrickson Inc., Mathy 502 
Construction, Gerke Excavating, Davy Engineering, MSA Professional Service, Olympic 503 
Builders, Stieger Construction, McCabe Construction, A-1 Excavating, State of Wisconsin 504 
DOT, Fahrner Asphalt Sealers, Twin City Striping, Livermore Technologies, Badger 505 
Swimpools, Inc., and any other contractor/developer 506 
 507 

 BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS 508 
MONTHLY ESTIMATES 509 

 510 
August 4, 2020 511 

 512 
    Original 513 
    Contract   Change   Paid to  Due this 514 
Contractor   Amount   Orders   Date   Estimate 515 
 516 
1.  STRAND ASSOCIATES 517 
     Stormwater Quality Management Plan 518 
     Design 519 
     Estimate #6    $   75,000.00      $     -      $   22,095.76 $   5,022.71 520 
 521 
2.  MSA PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 522 
     Green Coulee Intersection 523 
     Design – Final  524 
     Estimate #5    $   180,615.00      $     -     $   35,286.89 $   15,441.51 525 
 526 
3.  MCCABE CONSTRUCTION, INC. 527 
     2020 Utility Project 528 
     Construction 529 
     Estimate #4    $   1,634,976.70      $     -     $  695,770.12 $   176,413.89 530 
 531 
4.  OLYMPIC BUILDERS GENERAL CONTRACTORS 532 
     6th & Quincy Pumping Station 533 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, August 4, 2020 
14 

Reviewed 08/06/2020 by Jarrod Holter 
 

     Construction 534 
     Estimate #15    $   989,678.00$     19,045.56     $  968,282.26    $   24,688.30 535 
 536 
5.  STEIGER CONSTRUCTION 537 
     2020 Misc. Concrete Project 538 
     Construction 539 
     Estimate #3    $   84,612.50          $     -            $  30,622.40        $   45,862.26 540 
 541 
6.  LIVERMORE TECHNOLOGIES 542 
     Fiber Cable Project 543 
     Design 544 
     Estimate #4    $   18,010.00          $     -            $  6,737.50          $   3,355.00 545 
 546 
7.  FAHRNER ASPHALT SEALERS 547 
     Saw Seal 548 
     Construction 549 
     Estimate #1    $   22,000.00          $     -            $  -      $   20,023.85 550 
 551 
8.  STRAND ASSOCIATES 552 
     Court St. Lift Station 553 
     Construction 554 
     Estimate #11    $   24,300.00          $     -            $  11,852.15   $   6,630.48 555 
 556 
9.  SEH INC. 557 
     Green Coulee Reservoir 558 
     Design – Final 559 
     Estimate #4    $   97,000.00          $     -            $  89,157.55   $   5,325.87 560 
 561 
10.  STATE OF WI – DOT 562 
     STH 157-SS 563 
     Construction 564 
     (Project #1070-04-75) 565 
     Estimate #2    $   630,000.00          $     -            $  27,945.51   $   43,067.53 566 
 567 
11.  TWIN CITY STRIPING 568 
     City Wide Striping 569 
     Construction 570 
     Estimate #2    $   17,000.00          $     -            $  14,447.56       $   678.31 571 
 572 
12.  SEH INC. 573 
     2020 Utility Project 574 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, August 4, 2020 
15 

Reviewed 08/06/2020 by Jarrod Holter 
 

     Construction 575 
     Estimate #1    $   18,227.20        $     -              $  -    $   4,401.64 576 
 577 
13.  SEH INC. 578 
     2020 Unidirectional Flushing Plan 579 
     Design 580 
     Estimate #1    $   18,200.00       $     -               $  -              $   14,990.00 581 
 582 
14.  STRAND ASSOCIATES 583 
     2018 SCADA Enhancements 584 
     Design 585 
     Estimate #11    $   19,000.00          $     -            $  17,626.56       $   1,294.33 586 
 587 
15.  STRAND ASSOCIATES 588 
     Well #9 Chlorine Addition 589 
     Design 590 
     Estimate #8    $   16,300.00          $     -            $  12,584.11       $   705.67 591 
 592 
16.  DAVY ENGINEERING 593 
     French Rd. Booster Station/Crestwood Ln. 594 
     Construction – Fire Assessment 595 
     Estimate #2    $   5,000.00          $     -            $  1,189.96          $   244.04 596 
 597 
17.  OLYMPIC BUILDERS GENERAL CONTRACTORS 598 
     Crestwood Booster Station 599 
     Construction 600 
     Estimate #10    $   974,846.00   $     50,567.11 $  889,594.93       $   4,750.00 601 
 602 
18.  MATHY CONSTRUCTION 603 
     2020 Pavement Project 604 
     Construction 605 
     Estimate #1    $   777,115.10          $     -            $  -        $   457,624.20 606 
 607 
19.  BADGER SWIMPOOLS INC. 608 
     2020 Aquatic Center Resurfacing 609 
     Construction 610 
     Estimate #1    $   229,690.00          $     -            $  -       $   131,646.96 611 
 612 
20.  GERKE EXCAVATING 613 
     2019 Court St. Lift Station 614 
     Construction 615 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, August 4, 2020 
16 

Reviewed 08/06/2020 by Jarrod Holter 
 

     Estimate #5    $   394,000.00          $     -        $  273,408.57  $   100,891.43 616 
 617 
Motion by Mayor K. Smith, second by Ald. Nott, to approve the 20 pay estimates dated August 618 
4, 2020. 619 
 620 
On voice vote, motion carried. 621 
 622 
Adjournment  623 
 624 
Motion by Fred, second by Jarrod, to adjourn at 7:23 p.m. 625 
 626 
On voice vote, motion carried. 627 
 628 
 629 
Recorded by: 630 
 631 
Kirk Bey 632 


